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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to domestic winery ingredient utilization requirements and special events. 
 

Minutes:                                                 8 attachments. 

 
Senator Klein: Opened hearing on SB 2284. 
 
Doug Goehring: See attachment #1 for testimony in support of SB 2284. 
 
Vice Chair Myrdal: Can you give us a rough appropriation? 
 
Doug Goehring: Back in 2009, the legislature appropriated $250,000 to start the process of 
research, and move forward. 2011, 2013, 2015 and 2017, there have been appropriations of 
roughly $80,000 each biennium. In the previous biennium, it was about $76,000 because of 
some cuts we had to make. 
 
Vice Chair Myrdal: Can you give the number of wineries that use fruit verse those that use 
grapes. 
 
Doug Goehring: There are over twenty wineries in North Dakota, and close to, I believe, 
100 vineyards. Part of the funds that are utilized with the grape and wine research program 
can be used to support fruit production.  
 
Senator Hogan: What happens today? In terms of purchase product user wine from outside the 

state? 
 
Doug Goehring: There are some things you would have to comply with. In your second year, at least 
10% of your product has to come from North Dakota. It goes up incrementally by 10% every year, 
until by your 6th year you have to have at least 51% product coming from North Dakota. 

 
Rodney Hogen: See attachment #2 for testimony in support of SB 2284. 
 
Patrick Ward: See attachment #3 for testimony in support of SB 2284. 
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Senator Klein: Could somebody just have a winery in this state and not have to comply by 
these rules? 
 
Ward: Yes, North Dakota currently has a manufacturing license. You could buy one for about 
$500, it costs a little more than a domestic winery license; however, under a manufacturing 
license, you cannot sell at your premise, you cannot occupy another tier. 
   
 

Opposition 
 

Jeff Peterson: See attachment #4 for testimony in opposition of SB 2284. 
 
Senator Klein: I am somewhat offended by the whole-sell industry leading this thing, I would 
have to suggest that I tried to work with the whole sellers, with the growers, with the wineries. 
How are you doing business now under the current law, in regards to bulk wine? I don’t see 
where in this bill I am restricting your use. 
 
Peterson: That is based on negotiations that have been ongoing with our representative 
from the industry Ron Ballinger and Bob Nelson. I would like to defer that to those Ron.  
 
Senator Klein: But I see clearly in here that you said the wholesale industry would lead you 
to believe. I do not know where that came from, are you a part of that discussion? Did they 
tell you that in particular?  
 
Peterson: Are you asking if I have been in negotiation with Ron Ballinger and Bob Nelson? 
 
Senator Klein: What I am saying is that “it cannot be emphasized enough that this is not 
wineries verses the growers issue, which is what the wholesale industry would lead you to 
believe.” You wrote that, you said right here. 
 
Peterson: History, over the last 16 years, has shown that the way for us to successfully grow 
this industry and make it work, was by working with the opposition, which has always been 
the wholesalers.  
 
Greg Cook: See attachment #5 for testimony in opposition of SB 2284. 
 
Ethan Hennings: See attachment #6 for testimony in opposition of SB 2284. 
 
Senator Klein: This bill will not stop your ability to obtain fruit, as you need it; the adverse 
effect is that you may have to fill out more paperwork. We are not going to throw you into the 
street if you are unable to source your fruit locally, which was the whole point of the 
exemption, so you could acquire fruit elsewhere. You may have been a bit dramatic in saying 
the line, because you will be able obtain that juice if you so desirer it. 
 
Hennings: Showing you where we are at right now with the market, why even have it in the 
law. We know that it is going to be an issue year, after year, after year, so why even have it 
at all. 
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Senator Klein: So once again, it is the law you do not like. This bill will not put you out of 
business; it is just going to be restrictive in the future? 
 
Hennings: When I read the bill, it struck out to me that we would not be able to import juice. 
That is the only way we can make cider, we cannot get the same juice out of apple form. 
 
Senator Klein: Just so everyone in here understands, I know the committee was having a 
tough time understanding how I wanted an exemption to an exemption, let me reassure you 
that if this passes you will have the ability to get all the juice you need. 
 
Mark Vining: See attachment #7 for testimony in opposition of SB 2284. 
 
Randy Albrecht: See attachment #8 for testimony in opposition of SB 2284. 
 
Senator Klein: What do you propose to work together with the growers; I sense that is what 
we were doing initially? What can we do to work together with the growers now? 
 
Albrecht: The reality is that, right now we take 100% of Red Trail Vineyards grapes, so their 
grapes are covered. We are having our annual conference now, unfortunately, we had to 
come back here, but the session right now is with the growers and the wineries. Talking about 
to work together to try to look at the fruit that the winery’s needs, how to help the growers 
prosper. In a free market system this works, government cannot control everything 
sometimes the supply, the demand, the free market is what drives things to happen. That is 
really, what we are asking, the ingredient requirement does not solve any problems, it just 
creates some other problem. 
 
Senator Larsen: What is the bulk amount of the juice that you can get from out of state? 
 
Albrecht: Under the current wine law, it is either 50,000gl or 25,000gl of finished wine that 
can be brought in. 
 
Senator Larsen: Not finished wine, just juice. 
 
Albrecht: The 51% would drive the amount of juice that you could bring in. 
 
Rod Ballinger, Bear Creek Winery: I would just like to give a little background info on how 
this wine industry got started. About 4 sessions ago, the legislature passed a bill that put 
$250,000 for research, education, marketing and to jumpstart the wine and grape industry in 
North Dakota. It was a 7-man panel appointed to that, I was asked to serve as chairman of 
that committee. Because of that appropriation, we have 12,000 grape vines at NDSU right 
now under evaluation, and they are going through all the oenology wine science evaluations. 
We saw that this was going to be a huge venture for us, so we developed a Strategic Vision 
and Direction Conference. We invited people from all facets of the industry, including the 
office of the Governor, The Agriculture Commissioner, the Commerce Commissioner, we had 
NDSU, we had members from the Grape and Wine Association, and SBARE representatives 
were. We were to come up with a think tank so to speak, talking about how we can make this 
industry go. We had it facilitated by –inaudible- we had large tables, small discussions. During 
that time, we had a projection of what we had to get done in terms of our research, marketing; 
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one of the things that came up in that was a public policy. It was quoted that we have to 
streamline North Dakota laws, including direct to retail, that would allow North Dakotas 
wineries to survive. Three sessions ago the legislature passed law so we could now sell 
direct to retails. 
 
Senator Osland: Is the growing of grapes profitable? 
 
Ballinger: Yes, however there is a major startup cost.  
 

Chairman Luick: Closed hearing on SB 2284.  
 
(1:55:25) Committee goes to SB 2220 for remainder of recording. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
A bill relating to domestic winery ingredient utilization requirements and special events. 
 

Minutes:                                                 1 Attachment 

 
Senator Klein: Explained proposed amendment 19.1026.01001 (Attachment #1). 
Refreshed committee on what they had discussed during previous meetings. 
I Move the Amendment. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I Second 
 
Roll Call Vote Taken 
Motion Carried 6-0-0 
 
Senator Klein: I move SB 2284 as Amended 
 
Senator Myrdal: I Second. 
 
Senator Hogan: Obviously I've had huge pressure to vote no on this bill, but I love the 
amendment and it really makes sense to me, so I'm going to vote yes. I agree with Senator 
Klein; this bill is a back-up measure. If we need it, it will keep the industry alive. I don’t think 
people see it that way, but I will try to message as I go home this weekend. I think 
messaging is what’s important at this point. I think it’s a good back-up strategy. 
 
Senator Klein: Your comments could be that SB 2284 wasn’t going to remove the 
requirements anyway. The requirements are in there, but we’re not touching those; we’re 
saying in a six-year business you're supposed to have 50% of your fruit from North Dakota 
so you maintain your North Dakota status. Then you can go outside of the state for any 
particular reason. I know there’s some discussion it’s a requirement, you shouldn’t be doing 
this. That’s not what this bill does. This bill does not touch that requirement regulation at all. 
I think that’s where the confusion is, I know they have a different bill that will potentially 
supersede this, but our job is to look at the bill in front of us. Mr. Hogen who was here in 
support of the bill that day or the next day was elected as the president of the North Dakota 
Grape Growers. He also came to visit on Monday and said that they took no position, they 
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decided because there is a little bit of conflict between the growers and the makers. The 
growers are deeply concerned that if we eliminate the 50%. Of course I explained to 
Rodney that this bill does not change that and doesn’t give them any more authority. But if 
the bill continues they would still be able to sell their produce to the in-state wineries. I think 
we can all understand that, when I tried to explain this to him. But I don’t think anybody 
wants to listen. This has nothing to do with the distributors, this has to do with the grape 
growers. I said I would help Rodney through this process when he came to me; and 
continue to support grapes being researched here at the level of about $80,000 at NDSU 
and some cultivars and all those issues. I think we’re going to continue to build a North 
Dakota wine. We have to continue to work on North Dakota cultivars, and that’s what he 
seems to understand and that’s what he wants to do. 
 
Senator Larsen: I agree that we have to keep this going. The group that I work with, three 
years ago I think we sold 48,000 bottles of wine. Two or three years ago we sold 13,000 
bottles of wine, because of the downturn in the oil field. All of our rhubarb juice came from 
out of state because it didn’t happen. My vineyard that I have been growing and my son 
has been growing a lot of our wine grapes or vines came from the NDSU extension project. 
When he was going to NDSU he was part of the what is it horticulture? He was in the 
greenhouse and part of that, they gave him a bunch of vines to bring home and we’re 
growing them. Part of that six-year thing that Senator Klein’s talking about; we were told to 
strip the fruit off to make the plant hearty. So we haven’t produced any fruit for six years. 
This will be our second year producing, so the plants are seven years old. So we haven’t 
been making any wine until, this will be our second year producing with the group I'm 
working with; Thumbs Up Winery. They have four acres that have been producing for many 
years. Our product is in every store on the top shelf and the problem that is see with North 
Dakota wines is that we’re competing with worldwide wines that are really good for $8-$10 
a bottle, sand our North Dakota wines are $14- $17 a bottle and it’s really hard for me to 
buy my own product when I can get it right out of the jug as much as I want. It’s really hard 
for me to buy it. Until we find a wine or a grape that will match an Italian wine for $8 we are 
going to have a huge struggle. I don’t know what the answer of this is going to be. To keep 
the industry alive, I think we are going to end up having to blending our wines. I know the 
tourists; with what we’re doing in the Minot area we have a pottery studio, art studio, wine 
event/wine tasting and wedding event thing that we’re starting; another hat I'm putting on. 
People are going to come, and they are going to try to buy this wine and take it home. But 
you are not going to keep people there drinking that wine. They’re going to need a good 
quality wine to keep them there. So that’s where we’re headed to. So I think not hindering it 
in any way is going to be key. 
 
Chairman Luick: Does anybody know if the bill that is in the House has the language in 
here to increase the events from 20 to 30 as well or 20 to 40? 
 
Senator Larsen: I know we shouldn’t talk about cross bills or whatever, what is the angst 
about having more events and getting the word out and getting the promotion out, is that a 
problem? 
 
Senator Klein: I think part of it is because this is not jams, jellies or farmer’s markets. This 
is a taxed, very heavily regulated product; alcohol. The question is from the department and 
how you deliver that. There’s a point where that local bar says why can’t I just set up out 
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there on a Sunday afternoon? You’re making a bar out of this because every Sunday you 
can go down and drink wine, maybe I should be allowed to do this. There’s a little bit of a 
push back from the hospitality industry and I think there’s going to be some push back from 
mothers against drinking, because your promoting this. In some respects, it’s charity there 
are some charitable events. The big issue 40 events excluding Pride of Dakota gives them 
like every weekend. 30 seemed to be the number that Rodney suggested, because 
nobody’s even doing 20 now and he said 30 would be more than enough, because we still 
are excluding the Pride of Dakota events from that total. There’s been a lot of discussion. 
The tax department will be looking over their shoulders on that. The other issue is 
accounting for that alcohol and if they’re properly picking up that tax on every bottle that’s 
produced, because currently the distributor pays the tax when he delivers it to the store, to 
the retail outlet. So the tax department gets their tax in between their without having to go 
through Thumbs Up are you paying your tax? You’ll be audited because they’ll want to 
know where you're at. I think that’s mostly the bottom line on that. 
 
Chairman Luick: I think another crux of the whole thing is that you have the events like 
these, like if we have a dance in Fairmount where we have, it’s a private event we still have 
to have a deputy; law enforcement there to make sure there’s no alcoholic beverages being 
served to minors. In open events like this I think it’s a little bit tougher to regulate and watch 
over. So if you again are loosening it up to the point were now we’re going to have 50 
events or 40 events even 30 events, whatever it is. I think somebody may come in and say, 
well we want to make sure that there is law enforcement over-sight at these places as well. 
I don’t think that’s necessary, but I think that is being thought about. 
 
Senator Hogan: Have we done an interim study on this industry yet? 
 
Senator Klein: We haven’t really had a study, but as the businesses grow and the 
envelope continues to get pushed. There’s still a concern amongst the three tiered system. 
We’ve allowed the wine makers now to go beyond that. They can make the wine and 
deliver the wine and we’ve given them special exemptions. That’s some of the problems 
the distributors see. Now because of the direct delivery program we’ve established for our 
in state deliveries, we’re finding that out of state wine companies have seen this and 
because of the commerce clause they’re delivering direct into various liquor stores in North 
Dakota, which much to the angst of the big distributors they are bypassing that. I 
understand it’s all about business, but as we chip away the existing law that was intended 
to help North Dakota and help produce this value added agriculture, it’s unintended 
consequences that we face. 
 
Senator Hogan: Fargo has opened up the street fair to allow alcohol there. There’s a lot of 
policy on alcohol that’s local too, so then they cross reference how does this bill cross 
reference with all of those local regulations. You might be interested to know that the 
mayor’s commission on substance abuse is now looking at their local policies to see how 
they interface, and they should; because they are connected. 
 
Chairman Luick: We have a motion on the floor, do we have any further discussion? 
 
Roll Call Vote Taken 
Motion Carries 6-0-0 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Domestic winery ingredient utilization requirements & special events. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments 1, 2 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Opens the hearing on SB 2284. 
 
Sen Jerry Klein~District 14:  Introduces SB 2284.   The bill helps the grape growers.  If 
there is a fruit shortage, they can go out & buy some fruit.  The 2nd page, we added special 
events from 20 to 30.   
 
2:30 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Why did we drag the Ag commissioner into this decision instead of giving 
it to the Ag Commissioner? 
 
Sen Klein:  Because the alcohol industry is heavily regulated & taxed, the tax commissioner 
doesn’t miss an opportunity that they are following. 
 
Doug Goehring~Agriculture Commissioner-ND Department of Agriculture:   
Attachment 1. 
 
5:00 
 
Rep Laning:  The instate requirement is still there, this is really an exemption only on the 
shortage of the product, correct? 
 
Doug Goehring:  Yes, this would just grant a variance.   
 
Rep Richter:  How does this differ from what  we heard in the Ag Committee that appeared 
to grant the same exceptions to growers having to use so much of ND products & the events?  
Are the two bills about the same? 
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Doug Goehring:  I believe they are different.  They can access the product but doesn’t take 
out the requirement.  They would be granted the special permits. 
 
Rep M Nelson:  Is this covering only grapes or is it fruit as well? 
 
Doug Goehring:  Any product for wine production. 
 
Rep Adams:  HB 1502, that one states 40 events & this one states 30, shouldn’t they 
coincide with each other? 
 
Doug Goehring:  There are some things that are slightly different.  The Pride of Dakota was 
taken out, so they were offered 40 special permits.  Where The Pride of Dakota will be there 
with 30 events. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  In addition to Pride of Dakota? 
 
Doug Goehring:  Yes. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone else here to testify on SB 2284 in support, opposition? 
 
Randy Albrecht~Owns Wolf Winery:  Winerys were supporting & wholesalers were against 
it.  Since that time, we have come together as a group & supported with some amendments 
on HB 1190 to make it a good bill.  It also strengthens the existing system that they are 
concerned with.  We ask that you not pass SB 2284 & allow us to work with our wholesalers 
on HB 1190.  We are happy with where we are at. 
 
Rep Schauer:  How would this disrupt what’s happening on your work now for HB 1190. 
 
Randy Albrecht:  There are two bills trying to go to the same place with slightly different 
provisions. HB 1190 is supported by everyone except for one. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  The one that counts is the last one that was signed for bills.   

 
Ethan Hennings~Wild Terra Cider:  Attachment 2.   
 
14:30 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone else here to testify on SB 2284 in opposition, neutral position? 
 
Myles Wosberg~Tax Commissioner’s Office:  I’m here to answer questions. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Where is the tax benefit?  Why do you need to be involved versus Ag 
Commissioner? 
 
Myles Wosberg:  We issue the wine events & licenses.  As far as the waiver of the wine 
ingredients, I don’t think it’s that important to us. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Closes the hearing. 
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Chairman Keiser:  Do you have HB 1190? 
 
Sen Klein:  We have HB 1190.  Whether you pass SB 2274 or not, this shouldn’t affect HB 
1190.  Fruit requirement is in law.  We are providing an exemption. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  We will hold this one.   
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Domestic winery ingredient utilization requirements & special events. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Keiser:  Reopens the hearing on SB 2284. 
 
Rep D Ruby:  Moves a Do Not Pass. 
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  Second. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Further discussion?   We have HB 1190 that we sent out & the senate 
did amend it.  These bills are duplicative & that is the reason for the motion. 
 
Roll call was taken on SB 2284 for a Do Not Pass with 11 yes, 0 no, 3 absent & Rep D 
Ruby is the carrier. 
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